
Gareth Owens LL.B Barrister/Bargyfreithiwr
Chief Officer (Governance)
Prif Swyddog (Llywodraethu)

1

Swyddog Cyswllt:
Maureen Potter 01352 702322
maureen.potter@flintshire.gov.uk

At: Cyng Arnold Woolley (Cadeirydd)

Y Cynghorwyr: Marion Bateman, Mel Buckley, Tina Claydon, Jean Davies, 
Carol Ellis, Gladys Healey, Dennis Hutchinson, Dave Mackie, Hilary McGuill, 
Debbie Owen a Linda Thomas

12 Ionawr 2024

Annwyl Gynghorydd,

RHYBUDD O GYFARFOD HYBRID
PWYLLGOR TROSOLWG A CHRAFFU GOFAL CYMDEITHASOL AC IECHYD

DYDD IAU, 18FED IONAWR, 2024 2.00 PM

Yn gywir

Steven Goodrum
Rheolwr Gwasanaethau Democrataidd

Sylwch: Gellir mynychu’r cyfarfod hwn naill ai wyneb yn wyneb yn Siambr Cyngor yr 
Arglwydd Barry Jones, Cyngor Sir y Fflint, Yr Wyddgrug, Sir y Fflint neu ar-lein.

Bydd y cyfarfod yn cael ei ffrydio’n fyw ar wefan y Cyngor.  Bydd y ffrydio byw yn dod 
i ben pan fydd unrhyw eitemau cyfrinachol yn cael eu hystyried.  Bydd recordiad o’r 
cyfarfod ar gael yn fuan ar ôl y cyfarfod ar https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home

Os oes gennych unrhyw ymholiadau, cysylltwch ag aelod o’r Tîm Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd ar 01352 702345.

Pecyn Dogfen Gyhoeddus

https://flintshire.publici.tv/core/portal/home


2

R H A G L E N

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ymddiheuriadau.

2 DATGAN CYSYLLTIAD (GAN GYNNWYS DATGANIADAU CHWIPIO) 
Pwrpas: I dderbyn unrhyw ddatganiad o gysylltiad a chynghori’r Aelodau 

yn unol a hynny.

3 COFNODION (Tudalennau 3 - 8)
Pwrpas: I gadarnhau, fel cofnod cywir gofnodion y cyfarfod ar 7 Rhagfyr 

2023.

4 BWRDD IECHYD PRIFYSGOL BETSI CADWALADR 
Pwrpas: Derbyn diweddariad gan Fwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi 

Cadwaladr.

5 RHAGLEN GWAITH I’R DYFODOL A OLRHAIN GWEITHRED (Tudalennau 
9 - 18)
Adroddiad Hwylusydd Pwyllgor Trosolwg a Chraffu Iechyd a Gofal 
Cymdeithasol - 

Pwrpas: I ystyried y flaenraglen waith Pwyllgor Trosolwg & Chraffu Gofal 
Cymdeithasol ac Iechyd a rhoi gwybodaeth i’r Pwyllgor o’r 
cynnydd yn erbyn camau gweithredu o’r cyfarfod blaenorol.

Sylwch, efallai y bydd egwyl o 10 munud os yw’r cyfarfod yn para’n hirach na 
dwy awr.



SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
7 DECEMBER 2023

Minutes of the Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee of Flintshire 
County Council held as a hybrid meeting on Thursday, 7 December 2023

PRESENT: Councillor Arnold Woolley (Chair)
Councillors:  Marion Bateman, Mel Buckley, Tina Claydon, Carol Ellis, Hilary McGuill, 
David Mackie, and Debbie Owen

APOLOGY:  Councillor Gladys Healey

ALSO PRESENT:  Councillors Dave Hughes and Paul Johnson

SUBSTITUTION: Councillor Gina Maddison (for Councillor Linda Thomas)

CONTRIBUTORS: Councillor Christine Jones (Deputy Leader of the Council and 
Cabinet Member for Social Services and Wellbeing); Chief Officer (Social Services); 
Senior Manager - Safeguarding and Commissioning; Senior Manager Children and 
Workforce and Commissioning Manager

IN ATTENDANCE: Social Care & Environment Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator and 
Democratic Services Officer

31. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (INCLUDING WHIPPING DECLARATIONS)

Councillor Hilary McGuill declared that she had recently used Care and Repair 
and Councillor Marion Bateman declared that she had recently used the services of 
NEWCES.

32. MINUTES

Councillor Ellis referred to page 8 of the minutes where Councillor Paul Johnson 
asked for the recommendation to be slightly amended and asked if Members were 
given a list of the services that were a requirement by Welsh Government, as not 
everyone would have been aware of what they were.  She explained that she did not 
see information in the papers and was not present at the meeting and stated that if a 
recommendation was to be changed then Members should have had the required 
information.  The Facilitator advised that it was an invitation from Councillor Johnson to 
Members to bring forward any ideas following the meeting.  The Chief Officer (Social 
Services) confirmed that in context to the supported proposals that were reported to 
Committee last time, Members were invited to suggest ideas about budget savings 
across all Scrutiny committees but he understood Councillor Ellis’ point that Social 
Services was a very complex service and largely responded to statutory responsibilities 
making areas of savings hard to find, but that it was good to be open to any 
suggestions.  In response to Councillor Bateman who agreed with Councillor Ellis’ 
comments, the Chair asked the Chief Officer to give further information on statutory and 
non-statutory work. The Chief Officer advised that a significant majority of Social 
Services provision was statutory and suggested that at a future meeting, before the 

Tudalen 3

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 3



budget discussions were finished, clarification would be given as to which service areas 
were fully statutory, which Members welcomed.

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 October 2023 were approved as moved 
and seconded by Councillors Dave Mackie and Mel Buckley.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes be approved as a correct record.

33. FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION TRACKING

The Social Care & Environment Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator presented the 
current Forward Work Programme and Action Tracking as set out in the report and 
advised Members that the questions they had suggested had been forwarded to Betsi 
Cadwaladr University Health Board (BCUHB) for consideration prior to the January 
meeting.   She invited Members to put forward any further items to be included on the 
Forward Work Programme.

Councillor Bateman suggested that a manager should also be present at the 
January meeting to explain and possibly demonstrate ‘E-Consult’. She added that 
telephone consultations were not suitable for everyone and pointed out that other things 
could be picked up face-to-face rather than by telephone.  Councillor Maddison agreed 
and added that there were many older people who did not have access to computers/ 
internet/ mobile phones.  She regarded E-Consult as age discrimination and wanted 
BCUHB  to re-assurance members  that older people, who were not on-line, could have 
a personal consultation.  The Facilitator confirmed that E-Consult was on the list of 
questions to be put to BCUHB at the January meeting and that she would forward the 
additional comments to BCUHB, however she could not demand that one attended.

Councillor McGuill requested that when the Out of County Placements were 
reviewed that the progress that had been made in the Council’s own residential 
establishments be tied in.  The Chief Officer (Social Services) agreed and said that they 
would do that when the item was considered at the joint meeting in June 2024.

Councillor Ellis raised concerns about people in A&E side wards not being given 
food or drink, sometimes for days, and wanted the matter raising with BCUHB at the 
January meeting which the Chair said would be noted.

The Facilitator referred to Action Tracking and advised that a couple of items 
were still ongoing and that she would respond to Members when she had more 
information.  She confirmed that Out of County Placements had been added to the 
Forward Work Programme to be considered at the joint meeting on 27th June and that 
the previous comment made by Councillor McGuill would be covered.

The recommendations within the report were moved and seconded by 
Councillors Dave Mackie and Debbie Owen.

Tudalen 4



RESOLVED:

(a) That the Forward Work Programme be approved;

(b) That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be authorised 
to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as the need arises; 
and

(c) That the Committee notes the progress made in completing the outstanding 
actions.

34. COUNCIL PLAN 2023-24 MID-YEAR PERFORMANCE REPORTING

The Chief Officer (Social Services) introduced the report on the overall mid-year 
performance situation across the whole Council, with the table in section 1.04 covering 
all portfolios.  He pointed out that the appendix was most relevant to this Committee 
and that the relevant sub area was Personal and Community Well-being which had an 
action ‘RAG’ status of 90% green and 10% red and for Well-being a RAG status of 85% 
green and 15% red.  He highlighted some measures as set out in the appendices.

In response to an observation by Councillor Debbie Owen, the Chief Officer said 
that some priorities were supported by more than one portfolio and even though it was 
not a Social Services responsibility, the overall area of a well-connected, safe and clean 
local environment did sit under this the area of performance.

Councillor McGuill questioned in-house care and the recruitment of staff.  The 
Chief Officer explained that the in-house provision covered a host of services, many of 
which were regulated and therefore needed the staffing required to provide the service 
and that the regulated inspections had confirmed that they had sufficient staff to provide 
good quality services in those areas. However, he did not have the exact number of 
vacancies but would provide them after the meeting.  He added that recruitment had 
improved since the pandemic.

In response to Councillor McGuill’s second question concerning children coming 
out of care and the housing situation, the Chief Officer explained that he did not have 
the specific information about care leavers but agreed that it was a concerning area 
which they were actively considering.  He stated that homelessness had issues outside 
of Flintshire and nationally it was a real concern and agreed that she was right to 
identify.  He added that the portfolio had joint meetings with Housing and that 
accommodation for care leavers would be a priority for a future joint meeting.

In response to Councillor Mackie, the Chief Officer explained that the Direct 
Payment target was for the year but was applied to this period as it was a percentage 
and the performance was for the period and not for the full year.  He agreed with his 
point about the 12.7% allocation for Direct Payments in older people but stated that it 
reflected the situation nationally due to the nature of support provided for older people.  
However, some of it was not long term like other categories and it tended to attract a 
lower percentage of people wanting direct payments compared to people with life-long 
disabilities who had more direct payments.

Tudalen 5



The recommendations were moved and seconded by Councillors Mel Buckley and 
Tina Claydon.

RESOLVED:

(a) That Members support the levels of progress and confidence in the achievement 
of priorities as detailed within the Council Plan 2023/28 for delivery within 
2023/24;

(b) That Members support the overall performance against Council Plan 2023/24 
performance indicators/measures; and

(c) That Members are assured by the explanations given for the areas of 
underperformance.

35. SOCIAL CARE COMMISSIONING

The Senior Manager - Safeguarding and Commissioning advised that this report 
had been brought to Committee to repot the activity for the North Wales Domiciliary 
Care Agreement and the framework that was under development, stating that 
commissioning was a large part of the service provided by Social Services.

The Commissioning Manager gave background to the report before going into 
detail about the Domiciliary Care Agreement stating that Commissioning was a cyclical 
activity to assess the needs of its local population for care and support services.  She 
explained that the North Wales Domiciliary Care Agreement was a project between 
the six local authorities and Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board and that it had 
been in place since 2018 and was due to end on 31 March 2025 and that work had 
been started to complete the cycle. The agreement was a list of providers who had 
demonstrated their ability and competence to deliver domiciliary care that allowed 
them to purchase placements. The current Agreement covered Domiciliary Care 
Services for adults only but due to the success, the re-tendering would be expanded 
to include Domiciliary Care Services for Children / Young People / Adults and their 
Families / carers and older people.

In response to Councillor McGuill’s question, the Commissioning Manager 
confirmed that there were 13 registered Children and Young People Residential 
Homes which included new in-house homes.  On the number of current Out of County 
Placements for children, the Senior Manager (Children and Workforce) replied that 
there were usually around 40 children in residential care of which some would be 
based in the 13 homes within Flintshire, but gave assurance that all the children were 
in registered homes and that the out of county data would be provided.

Councillor Owen questioned the difference between registered and non-
registered places. The Commissioning Manager advised that the difference was that 
registered places were registered and Inspected by the Social Services Inspectorate - 
Care Inspectorate Wales (CIW).  She gave an example of unregistered as Micro 
Carers stating that even though they were delivering a regulated service, there was no 
requirement for them to be registered as long as they were only delivering a service to 
no more than four individuals.

Tudalen 6



Councillor Mackie questioned Welsh Government’s requirement of service 
providers not being allowed to make a profit and asked if it had any effects or impact 
on Flintshire and if there were any concerns. In response, the Commissioning 
Manager said that it was having an effect and impact and that to date the focus had 
been on Children’s Services although ambitions were to extend that across. She 
explained that some providers were taking the approach to step away from services in 
Wales as a result of the initiative which included a service that had already closed in 
Flintshire, whilst other providers were taking a positive look at it and converting their 
business model into non-profit organisation.  She added that she did not see it as a 
negative as they had a plan in place giving the example of the development of in-
house services to mitigate some of the exits from the market.  Her thoughts were that 
nationally there was a fear that the Welsh Government’s initiative was going to impact 
negatively on the sector which was already in crisis.

The Senior Manager - Safeguarding and Commissioning added that the changes 
were to come into force in 2027 and that conversations had already started with all of 
their care providers and through members support the provision of in-house residential 
services was something that the Council has been pro-active with.

The recommendations were moved by Councillor Hilary McGuill and seconded by 
Councillor Debbie Owen.

RESOLVED:

(a) That Members note the work of the contracts and commissioning team and the 
number of services they support and develop both in Flintshire and out of county; 
and 

(b) That Members note the planning work being undertaken for the new regional 
domiciliary care framework agreement needed to replace the existing framework 
which runs to 31st March 2025.

FOR INFORMATION

The Committee were shown a video showcasing innovative practice and 
excellence across Flintshire Social Services.

36. MEMBERS OF THE PRESS IN ATTENDANCE

None.

(The meeting started at 2.00 pm and ended at 3.27 pm)

……………………………….
Chair

Tudalen 7



Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting 18th January 2024

Report Subject Forward Work Programme and Action Tracking

Report Author Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Type of Report Operational

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Overview & Scrutiny presents a unique opportunity for Members to determine the 
Forward Work programme of the Committee of which they are Members.  By 
reviewing and prioritising the Forward Work Programme Members are able to 
ensure it is Member-led and includes the right issues.  A copy of the Forward Work 
Programme is attached at Appendix 1 for Members’ consideration which has been 
updated following the last meeting.

The Committee is asked to consider, and amend where necessary, the Forward 
Work Programme for the Social & Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee.

The report also shows actions arising from previous meetings of the Social & 
Health Care Overview & Scrutiny Committee and the progress made in completing 
them.  Any outstanding actions will be continued to be reported to the Committee 
as shown in Appendix 2. 

RECOMMENDATION

1 That the Committee considers the draft Forward Work Programme and 
approve/amend as necessary.

2 That the Facilitator, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee be 
authorised to vary the Forward Work Programme between meetings, as 
the need arises. 

3 That the Committee notes the progress made in completing the 
outstanding actions. 

Tudalen 9

Eitem ar gyfer y Rhaglen 5



REPORT DETAILS

1.00 EXPLAINING THE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME AND ACTION 
TRACKING

1.01 Items feed into a Committee’s Forward Work Programme from a number 
of sources.  Members can suggest topics for review by Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees, members of the public can suggest topics, items can 
be referred by the Cabinet for consultation purposes, or by County Council 
or Chief Officers.  Other possible items are identified from the Cabinet 
Work Programme and the Improvement Plan.

1.02 In identifying topics for future consideration, it is useful for a ‘test of 
significance’ to be applied.  This can be achieved by asking a range of 
questions as follows:

1. Will the review contribute to the Council’s priorities and/or objectives?
2. Is it an area of major change or risk?
3. Are there issues of concern in performance?
4. Is there new Government guidance of legislation?
5. Is it prompted by the work carried out by Regulators/Internal Audit?
6. Is the issue of public or Member concern?

1.03 In previous meetings, requests for information, reports or actions have 
been made.  These have been summarised as action points.  Following a 
meeting of the Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee in 
July 2018, it was recognised that there was a need to formalise such 
reporting back to Overview & Scrutiny Committees, as ‘Matters Arising’ 
was not an item which can feature on an agenda.

1.04 It was suggested that the ‘Action tracking’ approach be trialled for the 
Corporate Resources Overview & Scrutiny Committee.  Following a 
successful trial, it was agreed to extend the approach to all Overview & 
Scrutiny Committees.   

1.05 The Action Tracking details including an update on progress is attached at 
Appendix 2.

2.00 RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 

2.01 None as a result of this report.

3.00 CONSULTATIONS REQUIRED / CARRIED OUT

3.01 In some cases, action owners have been contacted to provide an update 
on their actions.

Tudalen 10



4.00 RISK MANAGEMENT

4.01 None as a result of this report.

5.00 APPENDICES

5.01 Appendix 1 – Draft Forward Work Programme

Appendix 2 – Action Tracking for the Social & Health Care OSC.

6.00 LIST OF ACCESSIBLE BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

6.01 Minutes of previous meetings of the Committee as identified in Appendix 2.

Contact Officer: Margaret Parry-Jones
Overview & Scrutiny Facilitator

Telephone: 01352 702427
E-mail: Margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk

7.00 GLOSSARY OF TERMS

7.01 Improvement Plan: the document which sets out the annual priorities of 
the Council. It is a requirement of the Local Government (Wales) Measure 
2009 to set Improvement Objectives and publish an Improvement Plan.

Tudalen 11

mailto:Margaret.parry-jones@flintshire.gov.uk


Mae'r dudalen hon yn wag yn bwrpasol



SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                             APPENDIX 1

Forward Work Programme
Date of 
meeting Subject Purpose of Report Scrutiny Focus Responsible / 

Contact Officer
Submission 

Deadline

9th February 
10.00 am 

Special meeting

Statutory & Non Statutory
Services – Social Services

Budget 2024/25 – Stage 3

To receive a report as requested at 
the December meeting. 

To present to the Committee the 
final stage proposals for the 2024/25 
Budget.

Information

Pre-decision 
Scrutiny 

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

29 February 24
2pm

Dementia Strategy 
Joint with BCUHB

Corporate parenting
 
Contextual Safeguarding 
Report

 To receive an update on the 
Dementia Strategy led by BCUHB

To receive an update

To receive an update

Assurance

Assurance

Assurance

Janet Bellis

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

6 June 24
2pm

Deferred Payment Audit 
Report 

Age Friendly Communities

Annual Safeguarding 
Report 

To consider the findings of the 
report

To receive an update  

To consider the Annual 
Safeguarding Report 

Assurance

Assurance

Assurance

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

Chief Officer – Social 
Services 

T
udalen 13



SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                             APPENDIX 1
Annual Director’s Report To consider the draft report Pre-decision Chief Officer – Social 

Services   

27 June 24 Joint meeting with Education, 
Youth & Culture OSC

Out of County Placements update 

18 July 24
10.00 am

Council Plan 2022-23 Year 
End Performance

Looked After Children 
Placements – Outcome of 
the review and impact on 
the Flintshire County 
Council Local Policy

To receive the final draft 
of the Director’s Annual 
Report
 

To consider the end of year 
performance report for Social 
Services

To receive a report on the outcome 
of the review and impact on the 
policy. 

To consider the final draft of the 
Director’s Annual Report prior to 
consideration at Cabinet.

Performance 
monitoring

Assurance

Pre-decision
 

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

Chief Officer – Social 
Services

Chief Officer – Social 
Services
 

Workshop to be held in Holywell in Feb/March

T
udalen 14



SOCIAL & HEALTH CARE OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME                                             APPENDIX 1

Regular Items
Month Item Purpose of Report Responsible/Contact 

Officer

Safeguarding  To provide Members with statistical information in 
relation to Safeguarding - & Adults & Children 

Chief Officer (Social 
Services)

May Educational Attainment of Looked 
After Children 

Education officers offered to share the annual 
educational attainment report with goes to Education & 
Youth OSC with this Committee. 

Chief Officer (Social 
Services)

May Corporate Parenting Report to Social & Health Care and Education & Youth 
Overview & Scrutiny.  

Chief Officer (Social 
Services)

Sept Comments, Compliments and 
Complaints

To consider the Annual Report Chief Officer (Social 
Services)

Betsi Cadwaladr University Health 
Board Update 

BCUHB are invited to attend on an annual basis   – 
partnership working.

Facilitator  

T
udalen 15



M
ae'r dudalen hon yn w

ag yn bw
rpasol



Action tracking from Social & Health Care OSC January 2024

Item/Date Discussion Action By whom Status

 20 July 2023
Child Care 
Sufficiency 
Assessment

The Committee 
welcomed the offer of a 
workshop to be held  for 
Members of the 
Committee.

Workshop to be 
arranged in the 
New Year . 

Gail Bennett Provisional 
dates have 
now been 
received.  
Date will be 
confirmed 
shortly. 

Minutes
In response to Councillor 
Bateman who agreed 
with Councillor Ellis’ 
comments the Chair 
asked the Chief Officer  
to provide further 
information on  Statutory 
and non-statutory 
services.  The Chief 
Officer advised that a 
significant majority  of 
Social Services provision 
was statutory and 
suggested that at a future 
meeting, before the 
budget discussions were 
finished, they clarified 
which areas of service 
were fully statutory.

Information to be 
provided  ahead 
of final 
consideration of 
budget proposals. 

Chief Officer Ongoing

7 December 23
Cllr Hilary McGuill 
requested that when the 
report is considered that 
a progress update is 
included for the in-house 

Report to include 
progress update 
on in-house 
residential 

Craig 
Macleod

Ongoing

Tudalen 17



residential establishment 
in Mold. 

establishment in 
Mold. 

7 December 23

Forward Work 
Programme

Further questions to be 
raised with BCUHB in 
advance of January 
meeting.

Facilitator to send 
additional matters 
raised to BCUHB

Facilitator Completed

Social Care 
Commissioning 
– Recruitment -
Inhouse 
provision

Cllr Hilary McGuill asked 
how many staff vacancies 
exist in our 
establishments.

Chief Officer to 
ask Janet 
Bellis/Mark Holt 
to provide the 
relevant 
information. 

Chief Officer
Janet Bellis
Mark Holt

Completed

Social Care 
Commissioning

How many out of county 
placements are there 
currently?

How many are in out of 
county placements in 
Flintshire?

Information to be 
provided Craig 

Macleod
Completed

Tudalen 18


	Rhaglen
	3 Cofnodion
	5 Rhaglen Gwaith I’r Dyfodol a Olrhain Gweithred
	Enc. 1 - Draft Forward Work Programme
	Enc. 2 - Action Tracking


